

First Regular Session
Seventy-fifth General Assembly
STATE OF COLORADO

REDRAFT
4/21/25

Double underlining
denotes changes from
prior draft

DRAFT

LLS NO. 25-0926.01 Jacob Baus x2173

COMMITTEE BILL

Joint Budget Committee

BILL TOPIC: Judicial Department Authority to Adjust Fees

A BILL FOR AN ACT

101 **CONCERNING AUTHORIZING THE JUDICIAL DEPARTMENT TO ADJUST**
102 **THE AMOUNT OF CERTAIN REVENUE THAT IS DEPOSITED INTO**
103 **CERTAIN FUNDS.**

Bill Summary

(Note: This summary applies to this bill as introduced and does not reflect any amendments that may be subsequently adopted. If this bill passes third reading in the house of introduction, a bill summary that applies to the reengrossed version of this bill will be available at <http://leg.colorado.gov/>.)

Joint Budget Committee. Beginning July 1, 2026, the bill authorizes the state court administrator to set, adjust, and deposit fees, costs, and surcharges in the following funds, subject to certain parameters:

- The court security cash fund;

*Capital letters or bold & italic numbers indicate new material to be added to existing law.
Dashes through the words indicate deletions from existing law.*

- The family violence justice fund;
- The family-friendly court program cash fund;
- The interstate compact probation transfer cash fund;
- The judicial center cash fund;
- The judicial collection enhancement fund;
- The judicial stabilization cash fund;
- The offender services fund;
- The state commission on judicial performance cash fund;
- and
- The supreme court library fund.

1 *Be it enacted by the General Assembly of the State of Colorado:*

2 **SECTION 1.** In Colorado Revised Statutes, **add** 13-3-121 as
3 follows:

4 **13-3-121. Fees, costs, and surcharges - report - definitions.**

5 (1) AS USED IN THIS SECTION, UNLESS THE CONTEXT OTHERWISE
6 REQUIRES:

7 (a) "AVERAGE STATE REVENUE GROWTH" IS THE AVERAGE
8 PERCENT OF THE FOUR PERCENTAGE CHANGES IN THE STATE'S REVENUE
9 THAT OCCURRED OVER THE PRIOR FIVE STATE FISCAL YEARS.

10 (b) "AVERAGE TOTAL TABOR REVENUE" IS THE AVERAGE
11 AMOUNT OF TOTAL REVENUE SUBJECT TO SECTION 20 OF ARTICLE X OF THE
12 STATE CONSTITUTION THAT WAS DEPOSITED IN ALL FUNDS THAT ARE
13 ADMINISTERED BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR OR UNDER THE
14 AUTHORITY OF THE SUPREME COURT DURING THE PRIOR FOUR STATE
15 FISCAL YEARS BY THE JUDICIAL DEPARTMENT, EXCEPT FOR INCLUDED
16 AGENCIES, AS DEFINED IN SECTION 13-100-102, AND THE OFFICE OF THE
17 STATE PUBLIC DEFENDER.

18 (c) "TOTAL CASH FUND REVENUE" MEANS THE TOTAL AMOUNT OF
19 CASH FUND REVENUE THAT WAS DEPOSITED IN ALL FUNDS THAT ARE
20 ADMINISTERED BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR OR UNDER THE

1 AUTHORITY OF THE SUPREME COURT DURING THE APPLICABLE STATE
2 FISCAL YEAR.

3 (2) THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR IS AUTHORIZED TO
4 COLLECT, SET, AND ADJUST AMOUNTS FOR FEES, COSTS, AND SURCHARGES,
5 OF WHICH REVENUE IS DEPOSITED IN THE FOLLOWING FUNDS:

6 (a) THE COURT SECURITY CASH FUND, CREATED IN SECTION
7 13-1-204;

8 (b) THE FAMILY VIOLENCE JUSTICE FUND, CREATED IN SECTION
9 14-4-107;

10 (c) THE FAMILY-FRIENDLY COURT PROGRAM CASH FUND, CREATED
11 IN SECTION 13-3-113;

12 (d) THE INTERSTATE COMPACT PROBATION TRANSFER CASH FUND,
13 CREATED IN SECTION 18-1.3-204;

14 (e) THE JUSTICE CENTER CASH FUND, CREATED IN SECTION
15 13-32-101;

16 (f) THE JUDICIAL COLLECTION ENHANCEMENT FUND, CREATED IN
17 SECTION 16-11-101.6;

18 (g) THE JUDICIAL STABILIZATION CASH FUND, CREATED IN SECTION
19 13-32-101;

20 (h) THE OFFENDER SERVICES FUND, CREATED IN SECTION
21 16-11-214;

22 (i) THE STATE COMMISSION ON JUDICIAL PERFORMANCE CASH
23 FUND, CREATED IN SECTION 13-5.5-115; AND

24 (j) THE SUPREME COURT LIBRARY FUND, CREATED IN SECTION
25 13-2-120.

26 (3) BEFORE EXERCISING ITS AUTHORITY TO SET OR ADJUST A FEE,
27 COST, OR SURCHARGE AMOUNT IN ANY OF THE FUNDS LISTED PURSUANT TO

1 SUBSECTION (2) OF THIS SECTION, THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR
2 SHALL CALCULATE THE MAXIMUM PROJECTED REVENUE INCREASE. THE
3 MAXIMUM PROJECTED REVENUE INCREASE IS:

4 AVERAGE STATE REVENUE GROWTH X AVERAGE TOTAL
5 TABOR REVENUE.

6 (4) BEFORE EXERCISING ITS AUTHORITY TO SET OR ADJUST A FEE,
7 COST, OR SURCHARGE AMOUNT IN ANY OF THE FUNDS LISTED PURSUANT TO
8 SUBSECTION (2) OF THIS SECTION, THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR
9 SHALL CALCULATE THE YEAR-OVER-YEAR CASH FUND REVENUE CHANGE.

10 THE YEAR-OVER-YEAR CASH FUND REVENUE CHANGE IS:

11 TOTAL CASH FUND REVENUE RECEIVED IN THE PRIOR STATE
12 FISCAL YEAR - TOTAL CASH FUND REVENUE FROM THE
13 STATE FISCAL YEAR THAT WAS TWO YEARS PRIOR.

14 (5) BEFORE EXERCISING ITS AUTHORITY TO SET OR ADJUST A FEE,
15 COST, OR SURCHARGE AMOUNT IN ANY OF THE FUNDS LISTED PURSUANT TO
16 SUBSECTION (2) OF THIS SECTION, THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR
17 SHALL CALCULATE:

18 MAXIMUM PROJECTED REVENUE INCREASE, DETERMINED
19 PURSUANT TO SUBSECTION (3) OF THIS SECTION -
20 YEAR-OVER-YEAR CASH FUND REVENUE CHANGE,
21 DETERMINED PURSUANT TO SUBSECTION (4) OF THIS
22 SECTION.

23 (6) NOTWITHSTANDING THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR'S
24 AUTHORITY TO SET OR ADJUST A FEE, COST, OR SURCHARGE AMOUNT
25 PURSUANT TO THIS SECTION, THE TOTAL FEE, COST, OR SURCHARGE
26 INCREASE IN ALL OF THE FUNDS LISTED PURSUANT TO SUBSECTION (2) OF
27 THIS SECTION IN THE CURRENT STATE FISCAL YEAR MUST NOT EXCEED THE

1 AMOUNT CALCULATED PURSUANT TO SUBSECTION (5) OF THIS SECTION.

2 (7) THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR IS AUTHORIZED TO
3 DETERMINE WHETHER CERTAIN FEES MUST BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUDICIAL
4 STABILIZATION CASH FUND AND THE STATE COMMISSION ON JUDICIAL
5 PERFORMANCE CASH FUND, IF THE RELEVANT PROVISION CONCERNING THE
6 FEE AUTHORIZES THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR TO MAKE THE
7 DETERMINATION.

8 (8) (a) ON OR BEFORE NOVEMBER 1, 2026, AND ON OR BEFORE
9 NOVEMBER 1 EACH YEAR THEREAFTER, THE STATE COURT
10 ADMINISTRATOR SHALL SUBMIT TO THE JOINT BUDGET COMMITTEE A
11 REPORT THAT CONTAINS, AT A MINIMUM, THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION
12 FROM THE PRIOR STATE FISCAL YEAR:

13 (I) EACH FEE, COST, OR SURCHARGE THAT WAS SET OR ADJUSTED
14 PURSUANT TO THIS SECTION, THE NEW AMOUNT, AND THE PRIOR AMOUNT;

15 (II) THE ESTIMATED REVENUE INCREASE FOR ALL STATE COURTS
16 DIVISIONS, INCLUDING THE SUPREME COURT AND COURT OF APPEALS,
17 STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR, TRIAL COURTS, AND PROBATION AND
18 RELATED SERVICES, FOR THE FEES, COSTS, OR SURCHARGES THAT WERE
19 SET OR ADJUSTED PURSUANT TO THE AUTHORITY PROVIDED IN THIS
20 SECTION, IN TOTAL; FOR EACH FEE, COST, OR SURCHARGE; AND FOR EACH
21 FUND; AND

22 (III) A DETAILED OUTLINE OF THE METHODOLOGY USED BY THE
23 JUDICIAL DEPARTMENT TO EXERCISE THE AUTHORITY PROVIDED PURSUANT
24 TO THIS SECTION TO ENSURE COMPLIANCE WITH THE REQUIREMENTS
25 PURSUANT TO THIS SECTION.

26 **SECTION 2.** In Colorado Revised Statutes, 13-1-204, **amend**
27 (1)(b) as follows:

1 **13-1-204. Court security cash fund - creation - grants -**
2 **regulations.** (1) (b) A ~~five-dollar~~ surcharge must be assessed and
3 collected as provided by law on docket fees and jury fees for specified
4 civil actions, ~~filed on and after July 1, 2007,~~ on docket fees for criminal
5 convictions, ~~entered on and after July 1, 2007,~~ on filing fees for specified
6 probate filings, ~~made on and after July 1, 2007,~~ on docket fees for
7 specified special proceeding filings, ~~made on and after July 1, 2007,~~ on
8 fees for specified filings in water matters, ~~initiated on and after July 1,~~
9 ~~2007,~~ on docket fees for specified traffic infraction penalties, ~~assessed on~~
10 ~~and after July 1, 2007,~~ and on docket fees for civil infraction penalties.
11 ~~assessed on or after March 1, 2022.~~ THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR
12 SHALL SET AND MAY ADJUST THE SURCHARGE AMOUNT PURSUANT TO
13 SECTION 13-3-121. The surcharge must be transmitted to the state
14 treasurer, who shall credit the surcharge to the fund.

15 **SECTION 3.** In Colorado Revised Statutes, 13-3-113, **amend**
16 (6)(a) as follows:

17 **13-3-113. Family-friendly courts. (6) Family-friendly court**
18 **program cash fund.** (a) There is ~~hereby~~ created in the state treasury the
19 family-friendly court program cash fund. The ~~moneys~~ MONEY in the
20 family-friendly court program cash fund ~~shall be~~ IS subject to annual
21 appropriation by the general assembly for the implementation of this
22 section. The state court administrator is authorized to accept on behalf of
23 the state any grants, gifts, or donations from any private or public source
24 for the purpose of this section. All private and public funds received
25 through grants, gifts, or donations ~~shall~~ MUST be transmitted to the state
26 treasurer, who shall credit the same to the family-friendly court program
27 cash fund in addition to any ~~moneys~~ MONEY that may be appropriated to

1 the cash fund directly by the general assembly. ~~In addition, commencing~~
2 ~~July 1, 2002~~ ADDITIONALLY, the ~~one-dollar~~ surcharge set forth in section
3 42-4-1701 (4)(a)(VI) ~~C.R.S., shall~~ MUST be transmitted to the state
4 treasurer who shall credit the same to the family-friendly court program
5 cash fund created in this subsection (6). All investment earnings derived
6 from the deposit and investment of ~~moneys~~ MONEY in the fund ~~shall~~
7 ~~remain~~ REMAINS in the fund and ~~shall~~ MUST not be transferred or revert
8 to the general fund of the state at the end of any fiscal year. THE STATE
9 COURT ADMINISTRATOR SHALL SET AND MAY ADJUST THE SURCHARGE
10 AMOUNT SET FORTH IN SECTION 42-4-1701 (4)(a)(VI), PURSUANT TO
11 SECTION 13-3-121.

12 **SECTION 4.** In Colorado Revised Statutes, 13-4-112, **amend** (1)
13 and (2) as follows:

14 **13-4-112. Fees of the clerk of court of appeals - equal justice**
15 **fee collection.** (1) (a) Within the time allowed or fixed for transmission
16 of the record, the appellant shall pay to the clerk of the court of appeals
17 a docket fee. ~~of two hundred twenty-three dollars.~~ THE STATE COURT
18 ADMINISTRATOR SHALL SET AND MAY ADJUST THE FEE AMOUNT PURSUANT
19 TO SECTION 13-3-121.

20 (b) The docket fee for the appellee ~~shall be one hundred~~
21 ~~forty-eight dollars to~~ MUST be paid upon the entry of appearance of the
22 appellee. THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR SHALL SET AND MAY ADJUST
23 THE FEE AMOUNT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121.

24 (2) (a) Each fee collected pursuant to ~~paragraph (a) of subsection~~
25 ~~(1)~~ SUBSECTION (1)(a) of this section ~~shall~~ MUST be transmitted to the
26 state treasurer and divided as follows:

27 (I) ~~One hundred fifty dollars shall~~ AN AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED

1 BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121
2 MUST be deposited in the supreme court library fund created pursuant to
3 section 13-2-120;

4 (II) ~~Five dollars shall~~ AN AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE
5 COURT ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be
6 deposited in the judicial stabilization cash fund created in section
7 13-32-101 (6); and

8 (III) ~~Sixty-eight dollars shall~~ AN AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY
9 THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121 MUST
10 be deposited in the justice center cash fund created in section 13-32-101
11 (7)(a).

12 (b) Each fee collected pursuant to ~~paragraph (b) of subsection (1)~~
13 SUBSECTION (1)(b) of this section ~~shall~~ MUST be transmitted to the state
14 treasurer and divided as follows:

15 (I) ~~Seventy-five dollars shall~~ AN AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY
16 THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121 MUST
17 be deposited in the supreme court library fund created pursuant to section
18 13-2-120;

19 (II) ~~Five dollars shall~~ AN AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE
20 COURT ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be
21 deposited in the judicial stabilization cash fund created in section
22 13-32-101 (6); and

23 (III) ~~Sixty-eight dollars shall~~ AN AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY
24 THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121 MUST
25 be deposited in the justice center cash fund created in section 13-32-101
26 (7)(a).

27 **SECTION 5.** In Colorado Revised Statutes, **amend** 13-5.5-115

1 as follows:

2 **13-5.5-115. State commission on judicial performance cash**
3 **fund - acceptance of private or federal grants - general**
4 **appropriations.** The state commission is authorized to accept any grants
5 of federal or private funds made available for any purpose consistent with
6 the provisions of this article 5.5. Any money received pursuant to this
7 section must be transmitted to the state treasurer, who shall credit the
8 same to the state commission on judicial performance cash fund, which
9 is hereby created. The fund also includes ~~the amount of the increases in~~
10 docket fees collected pursuant to sections 13-32-105 (1) AS DETERMINED
11 BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR, and 42-4-1710 (4)(a). THE STATE
12 COURT ADMINISTRATOR SHALL SET AND MAY ADJUST THE FEE AMOUNTS
13 PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121. Any interest derived from the deposit
14 and investment of money in the fund is credited to the fund. Any
15 unexpended and unencumbered money remaining in the fund at the end
16 of any fiscal year remains in the fund and ~~shall~~ MUST not be credited or
17 transferred to the general fund or another fund. Money in the fund may
18 be expended by the state commission, subject to annual appropriation by
19 the general assembly, for the purposes of this article 5.5. In addition, the
20 general assembly may make annual appropriations from the general fund
21 for the purposes of this article 5.5.

22 **SECTION 6.** In Colorado Revised Statutes, 13-32-101, **amend**
23 (1) introductory portion, (1)(a), (1)(a.5), (1)(b), (1)(b.5), (5)(a)(III),
24 (5)(a)(IV), (5)(a)(V), (5)(a)(X), (5)(b) introductory portion, (5)(b)(II),
25 (5)(g.5), (5)(h.5), (5)(i) introductory portion, (5)(i)(II), (5)(j) introductory
26 portion, (5)(j)(II), (5)(k) introductory portion, (5)(k)(II), (5)(l)
27 introductory portion, (5)(l)(II), (5)(m) introductory portion, (5)(m)(II),

1 (5)(n) introductory portion, (5)(n)(II), (5)(o) introductory portion,
2 (5)(o)(II), (5)(p) introductory portion, (5)(p)(II), (5)(q) introductory
3 portion, (5)(q)(II), (5)(r) introductory portion, (5)(r)(II), (5)(s)
4 introductory portion, (5)(s)(II), and (6) as follows:

5 **13-32-101. Docket fees in civil actions - judicial stabilization**
6 **cash fund - justice center cash fund - justice center maintenance fund**
7 **- equal justice fee collection - created - report - legislative declaration.**

8 (1) At the time of first appearance in all civil actions and special
9 proceedings in all courts of record, except in the supreme court and the
10 court of appeals, and except in the probate proceedings in the district
11 court or probate court of the city and county of Denver, and except as
12 provided in subsection (3) of this section and in sections 13-32-103 and
13 13-32-104, there ~~shall~~ **MUST** be paid in advance the total docket fees, as
14 follows:

15 (a) ~~On and after July 1, 2009,~~ By the petitioner in a proceeding for
16 dissolution of marriage, legal separation, or declaration of invalidity of
17 marriage and by the petitioner in an action for a declaratory judgment
18 concerning the status of marriage, a fee of ~~two hundred thirty dollars~~ AN
19 AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR
20 PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121;

21 (a.5) ~~On and after October 1, 2013,~~ By the petitioner in a
22 proceeding for dissolution of a civil union, legal separation of a civil
23 union, or declaration of invalidity of a civil union and by the petitioner in
24 an action for a declaratory judgment concerning the status of a civil
25 union, a fee of ~~two hundred thirty dollars~~ AN AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED
26 BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121;

27 (b) ~~On and after July 1, 2009,~~ By the respondent in a proceeding

1 for dissolution of marriage, legal separation, or declaration of invalidity
2 of marriage and by the respondent to an action for a declaratory judgment
3 concerning the status of marriage, a fee of ~~one hundred sixteen dollars~~ AN
4 AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR
5 PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121;

6 (b.5) ~~On and after October 1, 2013,~~ By the respondent in a
7 proceeding for dissolution of a civil union, legal separation of a civil
8 union, or declaration of invalidity of a civil union and by the respondent
9 to an action for a declaratory judgment concerning the status of a civil
10 union, a fee of ~~one hundred sixteen dollars~~ AN AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED
11 BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121;

12 (5) (a) Each fee collected pursuant to subsection (1)(a) or (1)(a.5)
13 of this section must be transmitted to the state treasurer and divided as
14 follows:

15 (III) ~~Fifty dollars shall~~ AN AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE
16 STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be
17 deposited in the judicial stabilization cash fund created in subsection (6)
18 of this section;

19 (IV) ~~Five dollars shall~~ AN AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE
20 STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be
21 deposited in the court security cash fund established pursuant to section
22 13-1-204;

23 (V) ~~Twenty-six dollars shall~~ AN AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY
24 THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121 MUST
25 be deposited in the justice center cash fund created in ~~paragraph (a) of~~
26 ~~subsection (7)~~ SUBSECTION (7)(a) of this section;

27 (X) ~~Five dollars shall~~ AN AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE

1 STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be
2 deposited in the family violence justice fund created in section 14-4-107
3 (1). ~~C.R.S.~~

4 (b) Each fee collected pursuant to ~~paragraph (b) or (b.5) of~~
5 ~~subsection (1)~~ SUBSECTION (1)(b) OR (1)(b.5) of this section ~~shall~~ MUST
6 be transmitted to the state treasurer and divided as follows:

7 (II) ~~On and after July 1, 2010, seventy-five dollars shall~~ AN
8 AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR
9 PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in the judicial
10 stabilization cash fund created in subsection (6) of this section, ~~five~~
11 ~~dollars shall~~ AN AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT
12 ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in
13 the court security cash fund established pursuant to section 13-1-204,
14 ~~twenty-six dollars shall~~ AN AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE
15 COURT ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be
16 deposited in the justice center cash fund created in ~~paragraph (a) of~~
17 ~~subsection (7)~~ SUBSECTION (7)(a) of this section, five dollars ~~shall~~ MUST
18 be deposited in the Colorado domestic abuse program fund created in
19 section 39-22-802 (1), ~~C.R.S.~~, and ~~five dollars shall~~ AN AMOUNT SET OR
20 ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO SECTION
21 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in the family violence justice fund created
22 in section 14-4-107 (1). ~~C.R.S.~~

23 (g.5) Each fee collected pursuant to subsection (1)(c)(III.5)(A),
24 (1)(c)(III.5)(C), or (1)(c)(III.5)(E) of this section ~~shall~~ MUST be
25 transmitted to the state treasurer and ~~five dollars shall~~ AN AMOUNT SET OR
26 ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO SECTION
27 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in the court security cash fund established

1 pursuant to section 13-1-204, ~~thirty-eight dollars shall~~ AN AMOUNT SET OR
2 ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO SECTION
3 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in the justice center cash fund created in
4 subsection (7)(a) of this section, and one dollar ~~shall~~ MUST be deposited
5 in the general fund pursuant to section 2-5-119. The remaining balance
6 ~~shall~~ MUST be deposited in the judicial stabilization cash fund created in
7 subsection (6) of this section.

8 (h.5) Each fee collected pursuant to subsection (1)(c)(III.5)(B),
9 (1)(c)(III.5)(D), or (1)(c)(III.5)(F) of this section ~~shall~~ MUST be
10 transmitted to the state treasurer, ~~and five dollars shall~~ AN AMOUNT SET
11 OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO
12 SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in the court security cash fund
13 established pursuant to section 13-1-204, and ~~thirty-eight dollars shall~~ AN
14 AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR
15 PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in the justice center
16 cash fund created in subsection (7)(a) of this section. The remaining
17 balance ~~shall~~ MUST be deposited in the judicial stabilization cash fund
18 created in subsection (6) of this section.

19 (i) Each fee collected pursuant to ~~sub-subparagraph (A) of~~
20 ~~subparagraph (IV) of paragraph (c) of subsection (1)~~ SUBSECTION
21 (1)(c)(IV)(A) of this section ~~shall~~ MUST be transmitted to the state
22 treasurer and divided as follows:

23 (II) ~~On and after July 1, 2010, fourteen dollars shall~~ AN AMOUNT
24 SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO
25 SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in the judicial stabilization cash
26 fund created in subsection (6) of this section, ~~five dollars shall~~ AN
27 AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR

1 PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in the court security
2 cash fund established pursuant to section 13-1-204, ~~eleven dollars shall~~
3 AN AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR
4 PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in the justice center
5 cash fund created in ~~paragraph (a) of subsection (7)~~ SUBSECTION (7)(a) of
6 this section, and one dollar ~~shall~~ MUST be deposited in the general fund
7 pursuant to section 2-5-119. ~~C.R.S.~~

8 (j) Each fee collected pursuant to ~~sub-subparagraph (B) of~~
9 ~~subparagraph (IV) of paragraph (c) of subsection (1)~~ SUBSECTION
10 (1)(c)(IV)(B) of this section ~~shall~~ MUST be transmitted to the state
11 treasurer and divided as follows:

12 (II) ~~On and after July 1, 2010, ten dollars shall~~ AN AMOUNT SET
13 OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO
14 SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in the judicial stabilization cash
15 fund created in subsection (6) of this section, ~~five dollars shall~~ AN
16 AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR
17 PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in the court security
18 cash fund established pursuant to section 13-1-204, and ~~eleven dollars~~
19 ~~shall~~ AN AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR
20 PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in the justice center
21 cash fund created in ~~paragraph (a) of subsection (7)~~ SUBSECTION (7)(a) of
22 this section.

23 (k) Each fee collected pursuant to ~~sub-subparagraph (C) of~~
24 ~~subparagraph (IV) of paragraph (c) of subsection (1)~~ SUBSECTION
25 (1)(c)(IV)(C) of this section ~~shall~~ MUST be transmitted to the state
26 treasurer and divided as follows:

27 (II) ~~On and after July 1, 2010, thirty-eight dollars shall~~ AN

1 AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR
2 PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in the judicial
3 stabilization cash fund created in subsection (6) of this section, ~~five~~
4 ~~dollars shall~~ AN AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT
5 ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in
6 the court security cash fund established pursuant to section 13-1-204,
7 ~~eleven dollars shall~~ AN AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT
8 ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in
9 the justice center cash fund created in ~~paragraph (a) of subsection (7)~~
10 SUBSECTION (7)(a) of this section, and one dollar ~~shall~~ MUST be deposited
11 in the general fund pursuant to section 2-5-119. ~~C.R.S.~~

12 (l) Each fee collected pursuant to ~~sub-subparagraph (D) of~~
13 ~~subparagraph (IV) of paragraph (c) of subsection (1)~~ SUBSECTION
14 (1)(c)(IV)(D) of this section ~~shall~~ MUST be transmitted to the state
15 treasurer and divided as follows:

16 (II) ~~On and after July 1, 2010, twenty-five dollars shall~~ AN
17 AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR
18 PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in the judicial
19 stabilization cash fund created in subsection (6) of this section, ~~five~~
20 ~~dollars shall~~ AN AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT
21 ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in
22 the court security cash fund established pursuant to section 13-1-204, and
23 ~~eleven dollars shall~~ AN AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT
24 ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in
25 the justice center cash fund created in ~~paragraph (a) of subsection (7)~~
26 SUBSECTION (7)(a) of this section.

27 (m) Each fee collected pursuant to ~~sub-subparagraph (E) of~~

1 ~~subparagraph (IV) of paragraph (c) of subsection (1)~~ SUBSECTION
2 (1)(c)(IV)(E) of this section ~~shall~~ MUST be transmitted to the state
3 treasurer and divided as follows:

4 (II) ~~On and after July 1, 2010, fifteen dollars shall~~ AN AMOUNT
5 SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO
6 SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in the judicial stabilization cash
7 fund created in subsection (6) of this section, ~~five dollars shall~~ AN
8 AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR
9 PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in the court security
10 cash fund established pursuant to section 13-1-204, and ~~eleven dollars~~
11 ~~shall~~ AN AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR
12 PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in the justice center
13 cash fund created in ~~paragraph (a) of subsection (7)~~ SUBSECTION (7)(a) of
14 this section.

15 (n) Each fee collected pursuant to ~~sub-subparagraph (F) of~~
16 ~~subparagraph (IV) of paragraph (c) of subsection (1)~~ SUBSECTION
17 (1)(c)(IV)(F) of this section ~~shall~~ MUST be transmitted to the state
18 treasurer and divided as follows:

19 (II) ~~On and after July 1, 2010, thirty dollars shall~~ AN AMOUNT SET
20 OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO
21 SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in the judicial stabilization cash
22 fund created in subsection (6) of this section, ~~five dollars shall~~ AN
23 AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR
24 PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in the court security
25 cash fund established pursuant to section 13-1-204, and ~~eleven dollars~~
26 ~~shall~~ AN AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR
27 PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in the justice center

1 cash fund created in ~~paragraph (a) of subsection (7)~~ SUBSECTION (7)(a) of
2 this section.

3 (o) Each fee collected pursuant to subsection (1)(d) of this section
4 ~~shall~~ MUST be transmitted to the state treasurer and divided as follows:

5 (II) ~~On and after January 1, 2019, one hundred sixty-one dollars~~
6 ~~shall~~ AN AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT
7 ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in
8 the judicial stabilization cash fund created in subsection (6) of this
9 section, ~~five dollars shall~~ AN AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE
10 COURT ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be
11 deposited in the court security cash fund established pursuant to section
12 13-1-204, ~~sixty-eight dollars shall~~ AN AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE
13 STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be
14 deposited in the justice center cash fund created in subsection (7)(a) of
15 this section, and one dollar ~~shall~~ MUST be deposited in the general fund
16 pursuant to section 2-5-119.

17 (p) Each fee collected pursuant to ~~paragraph (c) of subsection (1)~~
18 SUBSECTION (1)(e) of this section ~~shall~~ MUST be transmitted to the state
19 treasurer and divided as follows:

20 (II) ~~On and after July 1, 2010, ninety dollars shall~~ AN AMOUNT SET
21 OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO
22 SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in the judicial stabilization cash
23 fund created in subsection (6) of this section, ~~five dollars shall~~ AN
24 AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR
25 PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in the court security
26 cash fund established pursuant to section 13-1-204, and ~~sixty-eight dollars~~
27 ~~shall~~ AN AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR

1 PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in the justice center
2 cash fund created in ~~paragraph (a) of subsection (7)~~ SUBSECTION (7)(a) of
3 this section.

4 (q) Each fee collected pursuant to subsection (1)(f) of this section
5 ~~shall~~ MUST be transmitted to the state treasurer and divided as follows:

6 (II) ~~On and after January 1, 2019, one hundred nineteen dollars~~
7 ~~shall~~ AN AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT
8 ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in
9 the judicial stabilization cash fund created in subsection (6) of this
10 section, ~~five dollars shall~~ AN AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE
11 COURT ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be
12 deposited in the court security cash fund established pursuant to section
13 13-1-204, and ~~sixty-eight dollars shall~~ AN AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY
14 THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121 MUST
15 be deposited in the justice center cash fund created in subsection (7)(a)
16 of this section.

17 (r) Each fee collected pursuant to ~~paragraph (g) of subsection (1)~~
18 SUBSECTION (1)(g) of this section ~~shall~~ MUST be transmitted to the state
19 treasurer and divided as follows:

20 (II) ~~On and after July 1, 2010, one hundred forty-three dollars~~
21 ~~shall~~ AN AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT
22 ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in
23 the judicial stabilization cash fund created in subsection (6) of this
24 section, ~~five dollars shall~~ AN AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE
25 COURT ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be
26 deposited in the court security cash fund established pursuant to section
27 13-1-204, ~~fifteen dollars shall~~ AN AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE

1 STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be
2 deposited in the justice center cash fund created in ~~paragraph (a) of~~
3 ~~subsection (7)~~ SUBSECTION (7)(a) of this section, one dollar ~~shall~~ MUST be
4 deposited in the general fund pursuant to section 2-5-119, ~~C.R.S.~~, and
5 three dollars ~~shall~~ MUST be deposited in the vital statistics records cash
6 fund created in section 25-2-121. ~~C.R.S.~~

7 (s) Each fee collected pursuant to subsection (2) of this section
8 ~~shall~~ MUST be transmitted to the state treasurer and divided as follows:

9 (II) ~~On and after July 1, 2010, ninety-five dollars shall~~ AN
10 AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR
11 PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in the judicial
12 stabilization cash fund created in subsection (6) of this section, and ~~ten~~
13 ~~dollars shall~~ AN AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT
14 ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in
15 the justice center cash fund created in ~~paragraph (a) of subsection (7)~~
16 SUBSECTION (7)(a) of this section.

17 (6) There is ~~hereby~~ created in the state treasury the judicial
18 stabilization cash fund, referred to in this subsection (6) as the "fund",
19 that ~~shall consist~~ CONSISTS of all fees required to be deposited in the fund,
20 INCLUDING FEES PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-32-105, AS DETERMINED BY
21 THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR. The ~~moneys in the fund shall be~~
22 MONEY IN THE FUND IS subject to annual appropriation by the general
23 assembly for the expenses of trial courts in the judicial department. Any
24 ~~moneys~~ MONEY in the fund not expended for the purpose of this
25 subsection (6) may be invested by the state treasurer as provided in
26 section 24-36-113. ~~C.R.S.~~ All interest and income derived from the
27 investment and deposit of ~~moneys~~ MONEY in the fund ~~shall~~ MUST be

1 credited to the fund. Any unexpended and unencumbered ~~moneys~~ MONEY
2 remaining in the fund at the end of any fiscal year ~~shall remain~~ REMAINS
3 in the fund and ~~shall~~ MUST not be credited or transferred to the general
4 fund or any other fund.

5 **SECTION 7.** In Colorado Revised Statutes, 13-32-102, **amend**
6 (1), (6)(a) introductory portion, (6)(a)(II), (6)(b) introductory portion,
7 (6)(b)(II), (6)(c) introductory portion, (6)(c)(II), (6)(d) introductory
8 portion, (6)(d)(II), (6)(e) introductory portion, (6)(e)(II), (6)(f)
9 introductory portion, (6)(f)(II), (6)(g) introductory portion, (6)(g)(II),
10 (6)(h) introductory portion, and (6)(h)(II) as follows:

11 **13-32-102. Fees in probate proceedings - equal justice fee**
12 **collection.** (1) ~~On and after July 1, 2019,~~ For services rendered by judges
13 and clerks of district or probate courts in all counties of the state of
14 Colorado in proceedings had pursuant to articles 10 to 17 of title 15, the
15 court shall charge the following fees:

16 (a) ~~Docket~~ A DOCKET fee at the time of filing first papers in any
17 decedent's estate eligible for summary administrative procedures under
18 section 15-12-1203, or in any small estate of a person under disability
19 qualifying under section 15-14-118, which estates involve no real
20 property ~~\$83.00~~ IS AN AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE
21 COURT ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121.

22 (b) ~~Docket~~ A DOCKET fee at time of filing first papers in any estate
23 not coming within the provisions of subsection (1)(a) of this section
24 ~~199.00~~ IS AN AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT
25 ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121.

26 (c) ~~Additional~~ AN ADDITIONAL fee payable by petitioner at time
27 of filing petition for supervised administration of a decedent's estate

1 pursuant to sections 15-12-501 and 15-12-502, except for contested
2 claims ~~.... 198.00~~ IS AN AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT
3 ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121.

4 (d) ~~Docket~~ A DOCKET fee to be paid by the claimant prior to
5 hearing on any contested claim, which fee is taxed by the district or
6 probate court in the same manner as costs in civil actions ~~.... 198.00~~ IS
7 AN AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR
8 PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121.

9 (e) ~~Registration~~ A REGISTRATION fee for registration of trust
10 pursuant to article 5 of title 15 ~~.... 198.00~~ IS AN AMOUNT SET OR
11 ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO SECTION
12 13-3-121.

13 (f) ~~Docket~~ A DOCKET fee at time of filing first papers in each
14 action relating to a trust ~~.... 199.00~~ IS AN AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY
15 THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121.

16 (g) ~~Nonrefundable~~ A NONREFUNDABLE fee for any demand for
17 notice filed pursuant to section 15-12-204 ~~.... 36.00~~ IS AN AMOUNT SET
18 OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO
19 SECTION 13-3-121.

20 (h) A fee to be paid by the testator at the time of depositing a will
21 with the court during the testator's lifetime pursuant to section 15-11-515
22 ~~.... 18.00~~ IS AN AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT
23 ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121.

24 (6) (a) Each fee collected pursuant to subsection (1)(a) of this
25 section ~~shall~~ MUST be transmitted to the state treasurer and divided as
26 follows:

27 (II) ~~On and after July 1, 2019, forty-eight dollars shall~~ AN

1 AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR
2 PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in the judicial
3 stabilization cash fund created in section 13-32-101 (6); ~~five dollars shall~~
4 AN AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR
5 PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in the court security
6 cash fund established pursuant to section 13-1-204; fifteen dollars ~~shall~~
7 MUST be deposited in the office of public guardianship cash fund
8 established pursuant to section 13-94-108 (1); and ~~fifteen dollars shall~~ AN
9 AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR
10 PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in the justice center
11 cash fund created in section 13-32-101 (7)(a).

12 (b) Each fee collected pursuant to subsection (1)(b) of this section
13 ~~shall~~ MUST be transmitted to the state treasurer and divided as follows:

14 (II) ~~On and after July 1, 2019, one hundred forty-three dollars~~
15 ~~shall~~ AN AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT
16 ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in
17 the judicial stabilization cash fund created in section 13-32-101 (6), ~~five~~
18 ~~dollars shall~~ AN AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT
19 ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in
20 the court security cash fund established pursuant to section 13-1-204,
21 ~~fifteen dollars shall~~ AN AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT
22 ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in
23 the justice center cash fund created in section 13-32-101 (7)(a), thirty-five
24 dollars ~~shall~~ MUST be deposited in the office of public guardianship cash
25 fund established pursuant to section 13-94-108 (1), and one dollar ~~shall~~
26 MUST be deposited in the general fund pursuant to section 2-5-119.

27 (c) Each fee collected pursuant to subsection (1)(c) of this section

1 ~~shall~~ MUST be transmitted to the state treasurer and divided as follows:

2 (II) ~~On and after July 1, 2019, one hundred forty-three dollars~~
3 ~~shall~~ AN AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT
4 ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in
5 the judicial stabilization cash fund created in section 13-32-101 (6), ~~five~~
6 ~~dollars shall~~ AN AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT
7 ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in
8 the court security cash fund established pursuant to section 13-1-204,
9 thirty-five dollars ~~shall~~ MUST be deposited in the office of public
10 guardianship cash fund established pursuant to section 13-94-108 (1), and
11 ~~fifteen dollars shall~~ AN AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT
12 ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in
13 the justice center cash fund created in section 13-32-101 (7)(a).

14 (d) Each fee collected pursuant to subsection (1)(d) of this section
15 ~~shall~~ MUST be transmitted to the state treasurer and divided as follows:

16 (II) ~~On and after July 1, 2019, one hundred forty-three dollars~~
17 ~~shall~~ AN AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT
18 ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in
19 the judicial stabilization cash fund created in section 13-32-101 (6), ~~five~~
20 ~~dollars shall~~ AN AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT
21 ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in
22 the court security cash fund established pursuant to section 13-1-204,
23 thirty-five dollars ~~shall~~ MUST be deposited in the office of public
24 guardianship cash fund established pursuant to section 13-94-108 (1), and
25 ~~fifteen dollars shall~~ AN AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT
26 ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in
27 the justice center cash fund created in section 13-32-101 (7)(a).

1 (e) Each fee collected pursuant to subsection (1)(e) of this section
2 ~~shall~~ MUST be transmitted to the state treasurer and divided as follows:

3 (II) ~~On and after July 1, 2019, one hundred forty-three dollars~~
4 ~~shall~~ AN AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT
5 ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in
6 the judicial stabilization cash fund created in section 13-32-101 (6), ~~five~~
7 ~~dollars shall~~ AN AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT
8 ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in
9 the court security cash fund established pursuant to section 13-1-204,
10 thirty-five dollars ~~shall~~ MUST be deposited in the office of public
11 guardianship cash fund established pursuant to section 13-94-108 (1), and
12 ~~fifteen dollars shall~~ AN AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT
13 ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in
14 the justice center cash fund created in section 13-32-101 (7)(a).

15 (f) Each fee collected pursuant to subsection (1)(f) of this section
16 ~~shall~~ MUST be transmitted to the state treasurer and divided as follows:

17 (II) ~~On and after July 1, 2019, one hundred forty-three dollars~~
18 ~~shall~~ AN AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT
19 ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in
20 the judicial stabilization cash fund created in section 13-32-101 (6), ~~five~~
21 ~~dollars shall~~ AN AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT
22 ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in
23 the court security cash fund established pursuant to section 13-1-204,
24 ~~fifteen dollars shall~~ AN AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT
25 ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in
26 the justice center cash fund created in section 13-32-101 (7)(a), thirty-five
27 dollars ~~shall~~ MUST be deposited in the office of public guardianship cash

1 fund established pursuant to section 13-94-108 (1); and one dollar ~~shall~~
2 MUST be deposited in the general fund pursuant to section 2-5-119.

3 (g) Each fee collected pursuant to subsection (1)(g) of this section
4 ~~shall~~ MUST be transmitted to the state treasurer and divided as follows:

5 (II) ~~On and after July 1, 2019, twenty-five dollars shall~~ AN
6 AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR
7 PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in the judicial
8 stabilization cash fund created in section 13-32-101 (6), six dollars ~~shall~~
9 MUST be deposited in the office of public guardianship cash fund
10 established pursuant to section 13-94-108 (1), and ~~five dollars shall~~ AN
11 AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR
12 PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in the court security
13 cash fund established pursuant to section 13-1-204.

14 (h) Each fee collected pursuant to subsection (1)(h) of this section
15 ~~shall~~ MUST be transmitted to the state treasurer and divided as follows:

16 (II) ~~On and after July 1, 2019, ten dollars shall~~ AN AMOUNT SET
17 OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO
18 SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in the judicial stabilization cash
19 fund created in section 13-32-101 (6), three dollars ~~shall~~ MUST be
20 deposited in the office of public guardianship cash fund established
21 pursuant to section 13-94-108 (1), and ~~five dollars shall~~ AN AMOUNT SET
22 OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO
23 SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in the court security cash fund
24 established pursuant to section 13-1-204.

25 **SECTION 8.** In Colorado Revised Statutes, 13-32-103, **amend**
26 (1)(a), (1)(b) introductory portion, (1)(b)(II), (2)(a), (2)(b) introductory
27 portion, (2)(b)(II), (3)(a), (3)(b) introductory portion, (3)(b)(II), (6)(a),

1 (6)(b) introductory portion, and (6)(b)(II) as follows:

2 **13-32-103. Docket fees in special proceedings.** (1) (a) On and
3 after July 1, 2008, if an appeal is taken from a judgment of a county court
4 in a criminal matter or from a judgment of a municipal court, the
5 appellant shall pay a docket fee of ~~seventy dollars~~ AN AMOUNT SET OR
6 ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO SECTION
7 13-3-121. Such an appeal ~~shall~~ IS NOT BE subject to the tax imposed by
8 section 2-5-119, ~~C.R.S.~~, for the use of the committee on legal services.

9 (b) Each fee collected pursuant to ~~paragraph (a) of this subsection~~
10 ~~(1) shall~~ SUBSECTION (1)(a) OF THIS SECTION MUST be transmitted to the
11 state treasurer and divided as follows:

12 (II) ~~On and after July 1, 2010, forty-five dollars shall~~ AN AMOUNT
13 SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO
14 SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in the judicial stabilization cash
15 fund created in section 13-32-101 (6), ~~five dollars shall~~ AN AMOUNT SET
16 OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO
17 SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in the court security cash fund
18 established pursuant to section 13-1-204, and ~~twenty dollars shall~~ AN
19 AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR
20 PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in the justice center
21 cash fund created in section 13-32-101 (7)(a).

22 (2) (a) ~~On and after July 1, 2008,~~ In cases where a motion to
23 dismiss for failure to file a complaint is filed, the defendant shall pay a
24 docket fee of ~~fifty-five dollars~~ AN AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE
25 STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121.

26 (b) Each fee collected pursuant to ~~paragraph (a) of this subsection~~
27 ~~(2) shall~~ SUBSECTION (2)(a) OF THIS SECTION MUST be transmitted to the

1 state treasurer and divided as follows:

2 (II) ~~On and after July 1, 2010, thirty dollars shall~~ AN AMOUNT SET
3 OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO
4 SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in the judicial stabilization cash
5 fund created in section 13-32-101 (6), ~~five dollars shall~~ AN AMOUNT SET
6 OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO
7 SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in the court security cash fund
8 established pursuant to section 13-1-204, and ~~twenty dollars shall~~ AN
9 AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR
10 PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in the justice center
11 cash fund created in section 13-32-101 (7)(a).

12 (3) (a) ~~On and after July 1, 2008,~~ In cases where a motion to
13 authorize a sale in accordance with the provisions of rule 120, Colorado
14 rules of civil procedure, is filed, the applicant shall pay a docket fee of
15 ~~two hundred twenty-four dollars~~ AN AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE
16 STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121.

17 (b) Each fee collected pursuant to ~~paragraph (a) of this subsection~~
18 ~~(3) shall~~ SUBSECTION (3)(a) OF THIS SECTION MUST be transmitted to the
19 state treasurer and divided as follows:

20 (II) ~~On and after July 1, 2010, one hundred fifty dollars shall~~ AN
21 AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR
22 PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in the judicial
23 stabilization cash fund created in section 13-32-101 (6), ~~five dollars shall~~
24 AN AMOUNT SET AND ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR
25 PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in the court security
26 cash fund established pursuant to section 13-1-204, ~~sixty-eight dollars~~
27 ~~shall~~ AN AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR

1 PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in the justice center
2 cash fund created in section 13-32-101 (7)(a), and one dollar ~~shall~~ MUST
3 be deposited in the general fund pursuant to section 2-5-119. ~~C.R.S.~~

4 (6) (a) ~~On and after July 1, 2008;~~ In any supplemental proceeding
5 held pursuant to rule 69, Colorado rules of civil procedure, or rule 369,
6 Colorado rules of county court civil procedure, the judgment creditor,
7 upon commencement of the proceeding, shall pay a docket fee of ~~seventy~~
8 ~~dollars~~ AN AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT
9 ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121.

10 (b) Each fee collected pursuant to ~~paragraph (a) of this subsection~~
11 ~~(6) shall~~ SUBSECTION (6)(a) OF THIS SECTION MUST be transmitted to the
12 state treasurer and divided as follows:

13 (II) ~~On and after July 1, 2010, forty-five dollars shall~~ AN AMOUNT
14 SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO
15 SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in the judicial stabilization cash
16 fund created in section 13-32-101 (6), ~~five dollars shall~~ AN AMOUNT SET
17 OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO
18 SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in the court security cash fund
19 established pursuant to section 13-1-204, and ~~twenty dollars shall~~ AN
20 AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR
21 PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in the justice center
22 cash fund created in section 13-32-101 (7)(a).

23 **SECTION 9.** In Colorado Revised Statutes, 13-32-104, **amend**
24 (1) introductory portion, (1)(a), (1)(b), (1)(c), (1)(d), (1)(e), (1)(f), (1)(g),
25 (1)(h), (1)(j), (1)(k), (2), (3)(b) introductory portion, (3)(b)(II), (3)(c)
26 introductory portion, (3)(c)(II), (3)(d) introductory portion, (3)(d)(II),
27 (3)(e) introductory portion, (3)(e)(II), (3)(f) introductory portion,

1 (3)(f)(II), (3)(g) introductory portion, (3)(g)(II), (3)(h) introductory
2 portion, (3)(h)(II), (3)(i) introductory portion, (3)(i)(II), (3)(j) introductory
3 portion, (3)(j)(II), (3)(k) introductory portion, (3)(k)(II), (4) introductory
4 portion, and (4)(b) as follows:

5 **13-32-104. Additional fees of clerks of courts.** (1) ~~On and after~~
6 ~~July 1, 2008~~, In addition to the fees provided in sections 13-32-101,
7 13-32-103, and 13-32-105 (1), the following fees ~~shall~~ MUST be paid to
8 the clerk of the court by the party ordering the same:

9 (a) For preparing any record on appellate review, or for a copy of
10 any record, proceeding, or paper on file, where the copy is not furnished
11 by the party ordering the same, ~~thirty cents per folio or seventy-five cents~~
12 ~~per page~~ AN AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT
13 ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121, PER FOLIO AND PER
14 PAGE for photographic copies;

15 (b) For issuing and docketing each execution, and for filing the
16 sheriff's return of the same, a fee of ~~forty-five dollars~~ AN AMOUNT SET OR
17 ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO SECTION
18 13-3-121;

19 (c) For a certificate of dismissal or no suit pending, a fee of
20 ~~twenty dollars~~ AN AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT
21 ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121;

22 (d) For a certificate of satisfaction of judgment, a fee of ~~twenty~~
23 ~~dollars~~ AN AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT
24 ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121;

25 (e) For taking acknowledgment of any deed or other conveyance,
26 including clerk's certificate thereof, a fee of ~~one dollar~~ AN AMOUNT SET
27 OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO

1 SECTION 13-3-121;

2 (f) For certifying a copy of any record, proceeding, or paper on
3 file, a fee of ~~twenty dollars~~ AN AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE
4 COURT ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121;

5 (g) For preparing and issuing a transcript of judgment, a fee of
6 ~~twenty-five dollars~~ AN AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT
7 ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121; except that this fee
8 shall not be charged for a judgment entered pursuant to section
9 18-1.3-701; ~~C.R.S.~~;

10 (h) For a certificate of exemplification of any record, proceeding,
11 or paper on file, a fee of ~~twenty dollars~~ AN AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY
12 THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121;

13 (j) For issuing a writ of garnishment, a fee of ~~forty-five dollars~~ AN
14 AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR
15 PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121 for each garnishee named in the writ;
16 AND

17 (k) For issuing a writ of attachment, a fee of ~~sixty-five dollars~~ AN
18 AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR
19 PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121.

20 (2) The clerk of the court shall assess a ~~fifty-dollar~~ penalty against
21 any person who issues a check returned for insufficient funds in payment
22 of any court fees. The penalty provided in this section ~~shall~~ MUST be
23 assessed in addition to any other penalties or interest provided by law. For
24 purposes of this section, the term "insufficient funds" means not having
25 a sufficient balance in account with a bank or other drawee for the
26 payment of a check when presented for payment within thirty days after
27 issue. THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR SHALL SET AND MAY ADJUST

1 THE PENALTY AMOUNT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121.

2 (3) (b) Each fee collected pursuant to ~~paragraph (b) of subsection~~
3 ~~(1)~~ SUBSECTION (1)(b) of this section ~~shall~~ MUST be transmitted to the
4 state treasurer and divided as follows:

5 (II) ~~On and after July 1, 2009, thirty-five dollars shall~~ AN AMOUNT
6 SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO
7 SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in the judicial stabilization cash
8 fund created in section 13-32-101 (6), and ~~ten dollars shall~~ AN AMOUNT
9 SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO
10 SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in the justice center cash fund
11 created in section 13-32-101 (7)(a).

12 (c) Each fee collected pursuant to ~~paragraph (c) of subsection (1)~~
13 SUBSECTION (1)(c) of this section ~~shall~~ MUST be transmitted to the state
14 treasurer and divided as follows:

15 (II) ~~On and after July 1, 2009, fifteen dollars shall~~ AN AMOUNT
16 SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO
17 SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in the judicial stabilization cash
18 fund created in section 13-32-101 (6), and ~~five dollars shall~~ AN AMOUNT
19 SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO
20 SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in the justice center cash fund
21 created in section 13-32-101 (7)(a).

22 (d) Each fee collected pursuant to ~~paragraph (d) of subsection (1)~~
23 SUBSECTION (1)(d) of this section ~~shall~~ MUST be transmitted to the state
24 treasurer and divided as follows:

25 (II) ~~On and after July 1, 2009, fifteen dollars shall~~ AN AMOUNT
26 SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO
27 SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in the judicial stabilization cash

1 fund created in section 13-32-101 (6), and ~~five dollars shall~~ AN AMOUNT
2 SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO
3 SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in the justice center cash fund
4 created in section 13-32-101 (7)(a).

5 (e) Each fee collected pursuant to ~~paragraph (e) of subsection (1)~~
6 SUBSECTION (1)(e) of this section ~~shall~~ MUST be transmitted to the state
7 treasurer and divided as follows:

8 (II) ~~On and after July 1, 2009, the entire fee amount shall~~ AN
9 AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR
10 PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in the judicial
11 stabilization cash fund created in section 13-32-101 (6).

12 (f) Each fee collected pursuant to ~~paragraph (f) of subsection (1)~~
13 SUBSECTION (1)(f) of this section ~~shall~~ MUST be transmitted to the state
14 treasurer and divided as follows:

15 (II) ~~On and after July 1, 2009, fifteen dollars shall~~ AN AMOUNT
16 SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO
17 SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in the judicial stabilization cash
18 fund created in section 13-32-101 (6), and ~~five dollars shall~~ AN AMOUNT
19 SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO
20 SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in the justice center cash fund
21 created in section 13-32-101 (7)(a).

22 (g) Each fee collected pursuant to ~~paragraph (g) of subsection (1)~~
23 SUBSECTION (1)(g) of this section ~~shall~~ MUST be transmitted to the state
24 treasurer and divided as follows:

25 (II) ~~On and after July 1, 2009, twenty dollars shall~~ AN AMOUNT
26 SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO
27 SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in the judicial stabilization cash

1 fund created in section 13-32-101 (6), and ~~five dollars shall~~ AN AMOUNT
2 SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO
3 SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in the justice center cash fund
4 created in section 13-32-101 (7)(a).

5 (h) Each fee collected pursuant to ~~paragraph (h) of subsection (1)~~
6 SUBSECTION (1)(h) of this section ~~shall~~ MUST be transmitted to the state
7 treasurer and divided as follows:

8 (II) ~~On and after July 1, 2009, fifteen dollars shall~~ AN AMOUNT
9 SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO
10 SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in the judicial stabilization cash
11 fund created in section 13-32-101 (6), and ~~five dollars shall~~ AN AMOUNT
12 SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO
13 SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in the justice center cash fund
14 created in section 13-32-101 (7)(a).

15 (i) Each fee collected pursuant to ~~paragraph (i) of subsection (1)~~
16 SUBSECTION (1)(i) of this section ~~shall~~ MUST be transmitted to the state
17 treasurer and divided as follows:

18 (II) ~~On and after July 1, 2009, the entire fee amount shall~~ AN
19 AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR
20 PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in the judicial
21 stabilization cash fund created in section 13-32-101 (6).

22 (j) Each fee collected pursuant to ~~paragraph (j) of subsection (1)~~
23 SUBSECTION (1)(j) of this section ~~shall~~ MUST be transmitted to the state
24 treasurer and divided as follows:

25 (II) ~~On and after July 1, 2009, thirty-five dollars shall~~ AN AMOUNT
26 SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO
27 SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in the judicial stabilization cash

1 fund created in section 13-32-101 (6), and ~~ten dollars shall~~ AN AMOUNT
2 SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO
3 SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in the justice center cash fund
4 created in section 13-32-101 (7)(a).

5 (k) Each fee collected pursuant to ~~paragraph (k) of subsection (1)~~
6 SUBSECTION (1)(k) of this section ~~shall~~ MUST be transmitted to the state
7 treasurer and divided as follows:

8 (II) ~~On and after July 1, 2009, fifty-five dollars shall~~ AN AMOUNT
9 SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO
10 SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in the judicial stabilization cash
11 fund created in section 13-32-101 (6), and ~~ten dollars shall~~ AN AMOUNT
12 SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO
13 SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in the justice center cash fund
14 created in section 13-32-101 (7)(a).

15 (4) Each penalty collected pursuant to subsection (2) of this
16 section ~~shall~~ MUST be transmitted to the state treasurer and divided as
17 follows:

18 (b) ~~On and after July 1, 2009, forty dollars shall~~ AN AMOUNT SET
19 OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO
20 SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in the judicial stabilization cash
21 fund created in section 13-32-101 (6), and ~~ten dollars shall~~ AN AMOUNT
22 SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO
23 SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in the justice center cash fund
24 created in section 13-32-101 (7)(a).

25 **SECTION 10.** In Colorado Revised Statutes, 13-32-105, **amend**
26 (1) and (3) as follows:

27 **13-32-105. Docket fees in criminal actions.** (1) (a) At the time

1 of the first appearance of the defendant in all criminal actions in all courts
2 of record, except the county court, court of appeals, and the supreme
3 court, there ~~shall~~ MUST be charged against the defendant a total docket fee
4 of ~~thirty dollars~~ AN AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT
5 ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121, which ~~shall be payable~~
6 MUST BE PAID upon conviction of the defendant. In county courts, the total
7 docket fee in criminal actions ~~shall be eighteen dollars~~ IS AN AMOUNT SET
8 OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO
9 SECTION 13-3-121, which ~~shall be payable~~ MUST BE PAID by the defendant
10 upon conviction. These fees ~~shall~~ cover all clerks' fees prior to judgment.

11 (b) (I) On and after June 6, 2003, the docket fee in all criminal
12 actions in all courts of record, except the county court, court of appeals,
13 and the supreme court, is increased by five dollars, and the docket fee in
14 county court criminal actions is increased by three dollars. THE STATE
15 COURT ADMINISTRATOR SHALL SET AND MAY ADJUST AN INCREASE IN THE
16 DOCKET FEE FOR ALL CRIMINAL ACTIONS IN ALL COURTS OF RECORD,
17 EXCEPT COUNTY COURTS, THE COURT OF APPEALS, AND THE SUPREME
18 COURT, AND MAY INCREASE THE DOCKET FEE IN COUNTY COURT CRIMINAL
19 ACTIONS PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121. The additional revenue
20 generated by the docket ~~fee increases shall~~ FEES PURSUANT TO THIS
21 SUBSECTION (1)(b) MUST be transmitted to the state treasurer for deposit
22 in the state commission on judicial performance cash fund created in
23 section 13-5.5-115 OR THE JUDICIAL STABILIZATION CASH FUND CREATED
24 IN SECTION 13-32-101 (6), AS DETERMINED BY THE STATE COURT
25 ADMINISTRATOR.

26 (II) ON AND AFTER THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF THIS SUBSECTION
27 (1)(b)(II), THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR SHALL SET AND MAY ADJUST

1 PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121 THE DOCKET FEE IN ALL CRIMINAL
2 ACTIONS IN ALL COURTS OF RECORD, EXCEPT COUNTY COURTS, THE COURT
3 OF APPEALS, AND THE SUPREME COURT, AND MAY ADJUST THE DOCKET FEE
4 IN COUNTY COURT CRIMINAL ACTIONS. ADDITIONAL REVENUE GENERATED
5 BY THE DOCKET FEE ADJUSTMENTS DESCRIBED IN THIS SUBSECTION
6 (1)(b)(II) MUST BE TRANSMITTED TO THE STATE TREASURER FOR DEPOSIT
7 IN THE STATE COMMISSION ON JUDICIAL PERFORMANCE CASH FUND
8 CREATED IN SECTION 13-5.5-115 OR THE JUDICIAL STABILIZATION CASH
9 FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (6).

10 (c) Except as otherwise provided in ~~paragraph (b) of this~~
11 ~~subsection (1), on and after July 1, 2008~~ SUBSECTION (1)(b) OF THIS
12 SECTION, all fees collected under this section ~~shall~~ MUST be transmitted
13 to the state treasurer for deposit in the judicial stabilization cash fund
14 created in section 13-32-101 (6) OR THE STATE COMMISSION ON JUDICIAL
15 PERFORMANCE CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-5.5-115, AS
16 DETERMINED BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR.

17 (3) Pursuant to section 13-1-204 (1)(b), a ~~five-dollar~~ surcharge
18 ~~shall~~ MUST be assessed and collected on each docket fee described in this
19 section concerning criminal convictions entered on and after July 1, 2007.
20 THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR SHALL SET AND MAY ADJUST THE
21 SURCHARGE AMOUNT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121.

22 **SECTION 11.** In Colorado Revised Statutes, 13-53-106, **amend**
23 (1)(a), (1)(c) introductory portion, (1)(c)(II), and (1)(c)(III) as follows:

24 **13-53-106. Fees.** (1) (a) ~~On and after July 1, 2008, any~~ A person
25 filing a foreign judgment shall pay to the clerk of the court ~~two hundred~~
26 ~~one dollars~~ A FEE. THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR SHALL SET AND MAY
27 ADJUST THE FEE AMOUNT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121.

1 (c) Each fee collected pursuant to subsection (1)(a) of this section
2 ~~shall~~ MUST be transmitted to the state treasurer and divided as follows:

3 (II) ~~Sixty dollars shall~~ AN AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE
4 STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be
5 deposited in the judicial stabilization cash fund created in section
6 13-32-101 (6);

7 (III) ~~Fifteen dollars shall~~ AN AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE
8 STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be
9 deposited in the justice center cash fund created in section 13-32-101
10 (7)(a);

11 **SECTION 12.** In Colorado Revised Statutes, 13-71-144, **amend**
12 (1)(a), (1)(b), (2)(a) introductory portion, (2)(a)(II), (2)(b) introductory
13 portion, and (2)(b)(II) as follows:

14 **13-71-144. Jury fees to be assessed in civil cases.** (1) (a) ~~On and~~
15 ~~after July 1, 2019, any~~ A party demanding a trial by jury as provided by
16 statute shall pay to the clerk of the court a fee of ~~two hundred thirty-one~~
17 ~~dollars~~ in district court cases at the time the demand is made pursuant to
18 the Colorado rules of civil procedure. THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR
19 SHALL SET AND MAY ADJUST THE FEE AMOUNT PURSUANT TO SECTION
20 13-3-121.

21 (b) ~~On and after July 1, 2008, any~~ A party demanding a trial by
22 jury as provided by statute shall pay to the clerk of the court a fee of
23 ~~ninety-eight dollars~~ in county court cases at the time the demand is made
24 pursuant to the Colorado rules of civil procedure. THE STATE COURT
25 ADMINISTRATOR SHALL SET AND MAY ADJUST THE FEE AMOUNT PURSUANT
26 TO SECTION 13-3-121.

27 (2) (a) Each fee collected pursuant to subsection (1)(a) of this

1 section ~~shall~~ MUST be transmitted to the state treasurer and divided as
2 follows:

3 (II) ~~On and after July 1, 2019, one hundred sixty-five dollars shall~~
4 AN AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR
5 PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in the judicial
6 stabilization cash fund created in section 13-32-101 (6), ~~five dollars shall~~
7 AN AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR
8 PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in the court security
9 cash fund established pursuant to section 13-1-204, ~~forty-one dollars shall~~
10 MUST be deposited in the office of public guardianship cash fund
11 established pursuant to section 13-94-108 (1), and ~~twenty dollars shall~~ AN
12 AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR
13 PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in the justice center
14 cash fund created in section 13-32-101 (7)(a).

15 (b) Each fee collected pursuant to ~~paragraph (b) of subsection (1)~~
16 SUBSECTION (1)(b) of this section ~~shall~~ MUST be transmitted to the state
17 treasurer and divided as follows:

18 (II) ~~On and after July 1, 2009, eighty-four dollars shall~~ AN
19 AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR
20 PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in the judicial
21 stabilization cash fund created in section 13-32-101 (6), ~~five dollars shall~~
22 AN AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR
23 PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in the court security
24 cash fund established pursuant to section 13-1-204, and ~~nine dollars shall~~
25 AN AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR
26 PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be deposited in the justice center
27 cash fund created in section 13-32-101 (7)(a).

1 **SECTION 13.** In Colorado Revised Statutes, 16-11-101.6,
2 **amend** (1) as follows:

3 **16-11-101.6. Collection of fines and fees - methods - charges**
4 **- judicial collection enhancement fund - definition.** (1) If the
5 defendant is assessed any fines, fees, costs, surcharges, or other monetary
6 assessments with regard to the sentencing or other disposition of a felony,
7 misdemeanor, petty offense, civil infraction, traffic offense, or traffic
8 infraction and does not pay all amounts assessed in full on the date of the
9 assessment, the defendant shall pay to the clerk of the court an additional
10 time payment fee. ~~of twenty-five dollars.~~ The time payment fee may be
11 assessed once per case; except that, if amounts owed in the case have still
12 not been paid in full one year after the date of the assessment, the fee may
13 be assessed annually until the defendant has fully satisfied ~~his or her~~ THE
14 DEFENDANT'S financial obligation in the case. In addition, there may be
15 assessed against a defendant a late penalty fee ~~of ten dollars~~ each time a
16 payment toward the fines, fees, costs, surcharges, or other amounts owed
17 is not received on or before the date due. If the court determines that the
18 defendant does not have the financial resources to pay a time payment fee
19 or a late penalty fee, the court may waive or suspend a time payment fee
20 or a late penalty fee. Amounts collected are credited first against the time
21 payment and any late penalty fees assessed under this subsection (1), then
22 against any fines, and finally against any costs. The time payment fee and
23 late penalty fee described in this subsection (1) do not apply to a person
24 under the jurisdiction of the juvenile court or the person's parent,
25 guardian, or legal custodian. THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR SHALL
26 SET AND MAY ADJUST THE TIME PAYMENT AND LATE PAYMENT FEE
27 AMOUNTS PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121.

1 **SECTION 14.** In Colorado Revised Statutes, 18-1.3-204, **amend**
2 (2)(a)(V) and (4)(b)(I) as follows:

3 **18-1.3-204. Conditions of probation - interstate compact**
4 **probation transfer cash fund - creation.** (2) (a) When granting
5 probation, the court may, as a probation condition, require that the
6 defendant:

7 (V) Pay reasonable costs of the court proceedings or costs of
8 supervision of probation, or both. The court shall not require a defendant
9 to pay probation supervision fees in more than one case when the
10 defendant is granted probation in multiple cases. The probation
11 supervision fee is ~~fifty dollars~~ AN AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE
12 STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121 per month
13 for the length of ordered probation. Notwithstanding the amount specified
14 in this subsection (2)(a)(V), the court may lower or waive court costs and
15 the costs of supervision of probation for an indigent defendant. The court
16 shall fix the manner of performance for payment of the fee. If the
17 defendant receives probation services from a private provider, the court
18 shall order the defendant to pay the probation supervision fee directly to
19 the provider. The fee ~~shall be~~ IS imposed for the length of ordered
20 probation.

21 (b) (I) If an offender applies to transfer ~~his or her~~ THEIR probation
22 to another state, the offender shall pay a filing fee, ~~of one hundred dollars,~~
23 unless the offender is indigent. THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR SHALL
24 SET AND MAY ADJUST THE FEE AMOUNT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121.

25 **SECTION 15.** In Colorado Revised Statutes, 37-92-401, **amend**
26 (5)(a), (5)(b) introductory portion, (5)(b)(II), and (5)(b)(III) as follows:

27 **37-92-401. Tabulations of priorities and decennial**

1 **abandonment lists.** (5) (a) Any person who wishes to protest the
2 inclusion of any water right in a decennial abandonment list after its
3 revision by the division engineer shall file a written protest with the water
4 clerk and with the division engineer. All such protests to the decennial
5 abandonment list shall be filed not later than June 30, 1992, or the
6 respective tenth anniversary thereafter. ~~Such~~ THE protest shall set forth
7 in detail the factual and legal basis therefor. Service of a copy of the
8 protest or any other documents is not necessary for jurisdictional
9 purposes, but the water judge may order service of a copy of the protest
10 or any other document on any person and in any manner which he or she
11 may deem appropriate. The fee for filing ~~such~~ THE protest with the water
12 clerk ~~shall be forty-five dollars~~ IS AN AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE
13 STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121.

14 (b) Fees collected pursuant to ~~paragraph (a) of this subsection (5)~~
15 ~~shall~~ SUBSECTION (5)(a) OF THIS SECTION MUST be transmitted to the state
16 treasurer and divided as follows:

17 (II) ~~Fifteen dollars shall~~ AN AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE
18 STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be
19 deposited in the judicial stabilization cash fund created in section
20 13-32-101 (6); ~~C.R.S.~~; and

21 (III) ~~Ten dollars shall~~ AN AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE
22 STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121 MUST be
23 deposited in the justice center cash fund created in section 13-32-101
24 (7)(a). ~~C.R.S.~~

25 **SECTION 16.** In Colorado Revised Statutes, 42-4-1701, **amend**
26 (4)(a)(VI)(A) as follows:

27 **42-4-1701. Traffic offenses and infractions classified -**

1 **penalties - penalty and surcharge schedule - repeal.**
2 (4) (a) (VI) (A) Except as provided in ~~paragraph (c) of subsection (5)~~
3 SUBSECTION (5)(c) of this section, every person who is convicted of, who
4 admits liability for, or against whom a judgment is entered for a violation
5 of any provision of this ~~title~~ TITLE 42 to which the provisions of
6 ~~paragraph (a) or (b) of subsection (5)~~ SUBSECTION (5)(a) OR (5)(b) of this
7 section apply, shall, in addition to any other fine or penalty or surcharge,
8 be assessed a surcharge, ~~of one dollar~~ which amount ~~shall~~ MUST be
9 transmitted to the state treasurer for deposit in the family-friendly court
10 program cash fund created in section 13-3-113 (6). ~~C.R.S.~~ THE STATE
11 COURT ADMINISTRATOR SHALL SET AND MAY ADJUST THE SURCHARGE
12 AMOUNT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121. This surcharge ~~shall apply~~
13 APPLIES whether the defendant acknowledges the defendant's guilt or
14 liability in accordance with the procedure set forth by ~~paragraph (a) of~~
15 ~~subsection (5)~~ SUBSECTION (5)(a) of this section or is found guilty by a
16 court of competent jurisdiction or has judgment entered against the
17 defendant by a county court magistrate.

18 **SECTION 17.** In Colorado Revised Statutes, 42-4-1710, **amend**
19 (4)(a) and (4)(a.5) as follows:

20 **42-4-1710. Failure to pay penalty for traffic infractions -**
21 **failure of parent or guardian to sign penalty assessment notice -**
22 **procedures.** (4) (a) (I) (A) If judgment is entered against a violator, the
23 violator ~~shall~~ MUST be assessed an appropriate penalty and surcharge,
24 ~~thereon,~~ a docket fee, ~~of sixteen dollars,~~ and other applicable costs
25 authorized by section 13-16-122 (1). ~~C.R.S.~~ If the violator had been cited
26 by a penalty assessment notice, the penalty ~~shall~~ MUST be assessed
27 pursuant to section 42-4-1701 (4)(a). If a penalty assessment notice is

1 prohibited by section 42-4-1701 (5)(c), the penalty ~~shall~~ MUST be assessed
2 pursuant to section 42-4-1701 (3)(a).

3 (B) ~~On and after July 1, 2008,~~ All docket fees collected ~~under~~
4 PURSUANT TO this ~~subparagraph (F) shall~~ SUBSECTION (4)(a)(I) MUST be
5 transmitted to the state treasurer for deposit in the judicial stabilization
6 cash fund created in section 13-32-101 (6) OR THE STATE COMMISSION ON
7 JUDICIAL PERFORMANCE CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-5.5-115, AS
8 DETERMINED BY THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR. ~~C.R.S.~~ THE STATE
9 COURT ADMINISTRATOR SHALL SET AND MAY ADJUST THE FEE AMOUNT
10 PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121.

11 (II) (A) On and after June 6, 2003, AND BEFORE THE EFFECTIVE
12 DATE OF THIS SUBSECTION (4)(a)(I)(A), AS AMENDED, the docket fee
13 assessed in subsection (4)(a)(I) of this section is increased by three
14 dollars. The additional revenue generated by the docket fee ~~shall~~ MUST be
15 transmitted to the state treasurer for deposit in the state commission on
16 judicial performance cash fund created in section 13-5.5-115.

17 (B) ON AND AFTER THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF THIS SUBSECTION
18 (4)(a)(II)(B), THE STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR SHALL SET AND MAY
19 ADJUST PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121 THE DOCKET FEE ASSESSED IN
20 SUBSECTION (4)(a)(I) OF THIS SECTION. ADDITIONAL REVENUE GENERATED
21 BY THE DOCKET FEE ADJUSTMENTS DESCRIBED IN THIS SUBSECTION
22 (4)(a)(II)(B) MUST BE TRANSMITTED TO THE STATE TREASURER FOR
23 DEPOSIT IN THE STATE COMMISSION ON JUDICIAL PERFORMANCE CASH
24 FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-5.5-115 OR THE JUDICIAL STABILIZATION
25 CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (6), AS DETERMINED BY THE
26 STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR.

27 (a.5) Pursuant to section 13-1-204 (1)(b), ~~C.R.S., a five-dollar~~

1 surcharge IN AN AMOUNT SET OR ADJUSTED BY THE STATE COURT
2 ADMINISTRATOR PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-3-121, in addition to the
3 original surcharge described in ~~paragraph (a) of this subsection (4), shall~~
4 SUBSECTION (4)(a) OF THIS SECTION MUST be assessed and collected on
5 each docket fee that is described in ~~paragraph (a) of this subsection (4)~~
6 ~~concerning penalties assessed on and after July 1, 2007~~ SUBSECTION (4)(a)
7 OF THIS SECTION.

8 **SECTION 18. Effective date.** This act takes effect July 1, 2026.

9 **SECTION 19. Safety clause.** The general assembly finds,
10 determines, and declares that this act is necessary for the immediate
11 preservation of the public peace, health, or safety or for appropriations for
12 the support and maintenance of the departments of the state and state
13 institutions.